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. “The East Bridgeport National Register District is situated
on the East bank of the Pequonnock River opposite the northerly
part of the central business district. It comprises a 260-building
Vietorian planned residential and imdustrial community on twenty-five
city blocks surrounding a central square, Washington Park. It is
bounded on the south by the main trackline of the New Haven branch of
the Penn Central Railroad, an effective barrier (raised trestle) that
shields it from a parking lot-dominated area below where the Bridge--
port Jai Alai Fronton is located. On the west is a natural boundary,
the 100-yard-wide Pequonnock River. On the east the district is bounded
by the rear property lines of buildings facing East Main Street, a
- commercial thoroughfare, so that meither this street nor the-World War 1
era tenement neighborhood east of it is included. To the north the
boundary is Arctic Street and includes the structures on both sides.
Above Aretic Street is another neighborhood that differs visibly from
the East Bridgeport district, with a preponderence of wood frame two-
 family flat style houses that date from the 1890s and later rather
~ than the Italian villas, Gothic cottages and brick row houses that
 dominate the area to the south. o ,

The streets of the district are laid out in a regular pattern .
and meet at right angles. Knowlton Street is the only exception,
following basically the line of. the river which it adjoins. The .

 terrain is generally flat with a gradual slope toward the river from
~ William Street west. . f

' 'Buildings within the district fall into four major categories.
~ The first is the industrialists' houses, which encircle Washington
Park and are scattered throughout the'rest of the district. -Dating -
 primarily from either the late 1860s or the 1880s, they are mostly
of the Italian villa style (in some cases modified by a Mansard roof’)
or the Queen Anne., The major church structures of the district, four
 in number, all front on the park. Secondly, houses of artisans,
 tradesmen, and factory supervisors line the blocks surrounding Wash-
 ington Park. They are both single and double house types in scaled-
 down adaptations of the styles of the larger nearby houses. Third
- is the houses of the laboring class, concentrated in the William
' Street area but integrated to some extent throughout the district.
. These include brick row houses (generally in blocks of from four to
" six units) and four family frame tenements in addition to smaller
- single and double houses. Lastly, the industrial bulldings of the
district line both sides of Knowlton Street and extend to the Peq-
wonnock riverfront. They are constructed of brick and are from two
to four stories in height. Originally they were built to house
- ecarriage building, lumber milling, and metal goods manufacturing
coneerns, :
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116-20 Arctic Street

108 Arctic Street

117 Arctic Street
122-6 Arctic Street
128-30 Arctic Street
i37-9 Arctic Street
138 Arctic Street
178 Arctic Street
189-91 Arctic Street
194 Arctic Street
201-3 Arctic Street
211 Arctic Street
217-19 Aretic Street
227 Arctic Street
287-9 Arctic Street
301 Aretic Street
'335-41 Arctic Street
;351 Aretie Street
373 Arctic Street
381-3 Arctic Street
392 Arctic Street

/ﬁélph Cioecca :
162 Velvet Street Monroe, CT.
JRobert J. Murphy
¢/o Bridgeport Pattern & Model Works
108 Arctic Street '
Aecme United Corp.
100 Hicks Street
YManuel & Helen Matute
131 Arctic Street
“"Nicholas F. Mastriano
94 Dover Street Stratford, CT.
~Joseph Dewhirst
2500 Madison Avenue
vThomas & Lilyan Fraher
138 Arctic Street
vGiussepina L. DelVecchio
178 Arctic Street
wJoseph & Marilia Martire
306 Garibaldi Avenue Stratford, CT.
vWilliam & Carmenzo Giraldo
194 Arctic Street
«Juan Sanchez
201 Arctiec Street
v Verna & George Nyorba
211 Arctic Street
v Cleveland & Betty Jean Brown
217 Arctic Street
~Joseph & Victoria Kaddo
1465 Chopsey Hill Road
Lawrence & Russell Palaia
34 Wilton Road Fairfield, CT.
vSandra & Ronald Blevins etals.
. Morehouse Road Easton, CT.
v Dimitrij & Elsa Bogdanow
341 Arctic Street
J/ Joseph Rimkunas & John Weltner
150 Sehiller Road Fairfield, CT.
vAugusto & Francisca Castro
J/373 Arectic Street
Marie Carmela Terlizazi
/381 Arctic Street
J Dsvaldo & Brunilda Diaz
392 Arctic Street
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395 Arctic Street v Giuseppe & Elizabeth Pisacreta
395 Arctic Street
398 Arctic Street « Irene Donofrio
: 398 Arectic Street
LO4 Aretic Street ‘v Noe & Anna Moore
LOL Arctic Street
1 Armstrong Place vV Maria Rios
250 Priscilla Street
2 Armstrong Place Rose & Ruperto Rodriguez
: 2 Armstrong Place
3 Armstrong Place < Sebastiao & Matilde Morais
11 Grandview Avenue Fairfield, CT.
L Armstrong Place vCarlos Machueca & Carmen Diaz
7 Ay Armstrong Place
5 Armstrong Place VFederico & Zoraida Maldonado
‘ Armstrong Place
6 Armstrong Place Derl & Danny Rene Evans
6 Armstrong Place
7 Armstrong Place . Gilbert Figueroa -
’ N 7 Armstrong Place
8 Armstrong Place Angelo & Isabel Quintero
¢ 183 Harding Avenue Stratford, CT.
9 Armstrong Place Mereedes Diag
, ' ~f9 Armstrong Place
10 Armstrong Place Louise Johnson & George Felder
v'10 Armstrong Place
11 Armstrong Place Levinson Hamblin
J11 Armstrong Place
12 Armstrong Place nna DelFraneo
12 Armstrong Place
13 Armstrong Place "Ruth & Louis Shapiro
L J 60 Keeler Avenue
68-70 Barnum Avenue - Golden Properties Inc.
/1370 East Main Street
 76-8 Barnum Avenue Felix J. Leja
‘ { 78 Barnum Avenue
84-6 Barnum Avenue ./Edgardo & Sonia Rosa
, 8L Barnum Avenue
91-3 Barnum Avenue afaele Fittante & Concetta Casco
32 Wood Avenue Trumbull, CT.
- 94 Barnum Avenue ‘/Edward Socha
L5 Plum Tree Lane
101-3 Barnum Avenue Victor Posadzinski

211 William Street



Form No.10-300a
(Hev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

CONTINUATION SHEET ITEM NUMBER ), PAGE 4
102-4 Barnum Avenue Vietor Posadzinski
' v 211 William Street
106-8 Barnum Avenue Vietor Posadzinski
, 211 William Street
165«7 Barnum Avenue aria & Antonio Goncalves
167 Barnum Avenue
200 Barnum Avenue vpity Savings Bank
948 Main Street
208 Barnum Avenue Joseph F. Naclerio
, v 1,85 Ruth Street
215 Barnum Avenue George & Diane Riegel
/103 Warneke Road Wilton, CT.
235 Barnum Avenue Byzantine Rite Diocese of Stamford

c/o St. Mary's Ukranian Catholic Church
35 Barnum Avenue

255 Barnum Avenue vgharles & Frances Pistey

255 Barnum Avenue
269-71 Barnum Avenue ~Joseph & Dorinda Pizone

4 2320 East Main Street
281 Barnum Avenue Walman Real Estate Co, Inc.

+/ 281 Barnum Avenue
301 Barnum Avenue J?ark Street Congregational Church
' 301 Barnum Avenue
331 Barnum Avenue "Ernest & Ruth Arnold
' 4331 Barnum Avenue
361 Barnum Avenue Veronica M. Dugas

V361 Barnum Avenue
374 Barnum Avehue ‘;Norma Jean Holmes

374 Barnum Avenue
378 Barnum Avenue 'jLuéa Mae & Dorothy Kinchen
, 378 Barnum Avenue
380 Barnum Avenue ‘Michael & Hera Powell
- ' v 380 Barnum Avenue
384 Barnum Avenue gniel S. Marshall
384 Barnum Avenue
385 Barnum Avenue j£ouncil ngChurches of Greater Bridgeport
: 3030 Park Avenue
386 Barnum Avenue ‘nggn & Nanci DelVecchio
‘ 3 Barnum Avenue
408 Barnum Avenue ;iFrederick & Evelyn Chapman
' 457 Pemburn Drive Fairfield, CT.

25-7 Beach Street Anatol & Nadia Falko

67 Lansing Street
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26-32 Beach Street
31-3 Beach Street
37-9 Beach Street
34 Beach Street
L4L2-6 Beach Street
56-60 Beach Street

63-71 Beach Street

66 Beach Street

126 Beach Street

135 Beach Street
136-40 Beach Street
141-3 Beach Street
153 Beach Street
156-8 Beach Street
163-5 Beach Street
168-70 Beach Street
184-6; 192-4 Beach Street
189 Beach Street
195-7 Beach Street
198-20) Beach Street
208-12 Beach Street

‘211 Beach Street

White Eagle Society of Brotherly Help Inc

595 E. Washington Avenue

Pedro & Justina Carrasquillo
“ 31 Beach Street

Frank & Eleanor Cholko
/37 Beach Street

- Second House of Prayer Pentecostal Church
/34 Beach Street

,Doric Lodge #4 F.A.M. P.H.A.

J 865 East Main Street

Polish Army Veterans Assoc. of America
,Post #24 Inc.

" 56 Beach Street

Paul & Catherine Picard

352 Grey Rock Road

,Frank Pelak
v 713 Boston Avenue

Josef Kruzewski

V126 Beach Street

;Maria W. Bochnak

«j135 Beach Street

.Katarzyna Choinski

4136 Beach Street

Joseph Skonieczny & Helen Schmittgall
494 King Street

jMary Chakmakjian

153 Beach Street

Marin & Margarita Merced

4158 Beach Street

;Janina Grabowski
4165 Beach Street

; Connecticut National Bank
4 888 Main Street

Irene & Robert DelBuono

“608 Ferry Boulevard Stratford, CT.

fael Cotto & Rafael Cotto Jr.

V189 Beach Street

Basilio Pringio
vi6 Waverly Place

Helen Bielski
v 198 Beach Street

Carmen I. Crespo

v210 Beach Street

v'Gorbach Properties Inc.
407 Clinton Avenue
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218-20 Beach Street
221 Beach Street
223 Beach Street
221 Beach‘Street

259 Beach Street

63-5 Crescent Avenue

295-7 E. Washington Avenue
300 E. Washington Avenue
303 E. Washington Avenue
310 E. Washington Avenue
311-13 E. Washington Avenue
319-21 E., Washington Avenue
365-409 E. Washington Avenue
376 E. Washington Avenue
L26 E. Washington Avenue
L7 E. Washington Avenue
4,80 E. Washington Avenue
L,96-8 E. Washington Avenue
512 E. Washington Avenue
526 E. Washington Avenue
530 E. Washington Avenue
534 E. Washington Avenue

wGiussepina Castorina
218 Beach Street
vGiussepina Castorina
218 Beach Street
v/John G. Mako Jr.
223 Beach Street
v Perry Pilotti
¢/o Arctic Sport Shop Inc.
05 Arctic Street
Stephen & Anna Kasper
59 Beach Street
Eugene Kohan
65 Jay Circle Fairfield, CT.
v;Edward & Dorothy Bike
th Sylvan Avenue
Angelo & Annunzio Melisi
59 Limerick Road Trumbull, CT.
cMellon Bros. Inc.
915 Honeyspot Road Stratford, CT.
f%eorge & Herbert Lewin
255 Stoneleigh Square Fairfield, CT.
vWilliam & Sadelle Phillips
326 Melville Avenue Fairfield, CT.
vTheodore Walton
321 E. Washington Avenue
J/Roman Catholic Church of Our Lady of Pompei
365 E. Washington Avenue
City of Bridgeport (Housing Authority)
v'376" E. Washington Avenue
. Kenneth & Nicholas Abriola
v6033 Main Street Trumbull, CT.
« Thomas Brothers Co.
L4LO Meadow Street Waterbury, CT.
International Institute of Bridgeport
uthO E. Washington Avenue
Willis Mclean
v 42 Ridgeway Avenue Trumbull, CT.
‘jNortheast Assoc. of Christian Churches Inc.
512 E. Washington Avenue
Peter & John Yaremich
v/ 88 North Avenue
Eleanor Podolak
21 Wareham Place Trumbull, CT.
v/galvatore Maresca

5 Four Seasons Road Fairfield, CT.



Farm No. 10-300a
{Kev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

CONTINUATION SHEET

ITEM NUMBER 1

PAGE 6

56l E. Washington Avenue
572 E. Washington Avenue
579-81 E. Washington Avenue
595 E. Washington Avenue
617-21 E. Washington Avenue
56 Harriet Street

66 Harriet Street

76 Harriet Street

88 Harriet Street

92-118 Harriet Street
161-3 Harriet Street

‘175 Harriet Street

184-6 Harriet Street
18591 Harriet Street
192-6 Harriet Street
197 Harriet Street
- 199-207 Harriet Street
200~08 Harriet Street
217-19 Harriet Street
258 Harriet Street
261 Harriet Street

272 Harriet Street

‘/Congregation Adath Israel

564 E. Washington Avenue
VStanley & Olga Golenski

572 E. Washington Avenue

Ivan & Harriette Hirsch

L6 Northwood Road Fairfield, CT.

—— White Eagle Society of Brotherly Help

5905 E. Washington Avenue
vPark City Housing Development Corp.
25 Water Street
Silverstone Electrical Co. Inc.
762 Garfield Awenue
Miracle Faith Church
V66 Harriet Street
v Rafael & Ramonita Rosado
76 Harriet Street
VzRose Provenzano
88 Harriet Street
Kenneth & Nicholas Abriola
6033 Main Street Trumbull
vAngelo & Vincenza Oliva
161 Harriet Street
viioman Catholic Church of Our Lady of
Pompeii
365 E. Washington Avenue
Chance & Hazel Chin
w77 Van Rensellaer Avenue Stratford, CT.
Nicholas F. Mastriano
v 94 Dover Street Stratford, CT.
Juan, Agripina, & Israel Gonzaleyw
w192 Harriet Street
James, John & Barbara Kopcso
v“102 Ashley Street
Eleanor Podolak
v 21 Wareham Place Trumbull, CT.
Gregorio & Carmen Crespo
v200 Harriet Street
Joseph & Josephine Sajda
v219 Harriet Street
- St. Joseph's Polish National Catholic Ch.
v258 Harriet Street
John & Florence Ballas
V261 Harriet Street

vGuillermo & Emma Gonzaleg
272 Harriet Street
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275 Harriet Street vLarry Levesque
‘ 275 Harriet Street
280 Harriet Street Waclaw Osakawicsz
: v'280 Harriet Street
290 Harriet Street Victor & Ramonita Castro
V290 Harriet Street
291 Harriet Street William F. Brown
91 Harriet Street
295 Harriet Street Juan & Ignacia Chico
, Y295 Harriet Street
208-300 Harriet Street Leo S. Hirschorn
v'|,79A Commanche Lane Stratford, CT.
325 Harriet Street Jone K. Myers ~
' v'325 Harriet Street
341-3 Harriet Street ‘Mary Roy
¥ 3L1 Harriet Street
353~5 Harriet Street Guelharmina & Sebastiao Barata
" v353 Harriet Street
63 Knowlton Street Park City Supply Co.
v'63 Knowlton Street
71-89 Knowlton Street Michael & John DeMattia
v30 Ashley Street
72-6 Knowlton Street McCathron Boiler Works Inc.
V72 Knowlton Street
116=~24; 121-31 Knowlton Street Bufferd Junk Co. Inc.
V116 Knowlton Street
198 Knowlton Street ~ McMellon Bros. Inc.
915 Honeyspot Road Stratford, CT.
206=1l4 Knowlton Street Thomas Kaskie & Zalmon Hirsch
V1237 Daniels Farm Road Trumbull, CT.
207 Knowlton Street vGeorge & Herbert Lewin
255 Stoneleigh Square Fairfield, CT.
220-32 Knowlton Street Albert Ferrano
©2 Macon Drive
24,0 Knowlton Street wiritchard Machine Co. Inc.
24,0 Knowlton Street
286-8 Knowlton Street vCoca-Cola Bottling Co. of New York Inc.
286 Knowlton Street
305 Knowlton Street braham Goldbloom
9 Weathervane Drive Easton, CT.
332 Knowlton Street Southern Connecticut Gas Co. Ince.
v8B80 Broad Street
386-406 Knowlton Street Leon A. Barnaby

Beaver Dam Road Stratford, CT.
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4,01 Knowlton Street

L59; 518~62 Knowlton Street

541 Knowlton Street
55L-6 Kossuth Street
564 Kossuth Street
574 Kossuth Street
580 Kossuth Street
582 Kossuth Street
584 Kossuth Street
592-8 Kossuth Street
616-18 Kossuth Street
630 Kossuth Street
632 Kossuth Street
669-75 Kossuth Street
683-5 Kossuth Street
684-6 Kossuth Street
693~5 Kossuth Street
696-8 Kossuth Street
703 Kossuth Street
704=-6 Kossuth Street
712-1L4 Kossuth Street
713-19 Kossuth Street

Bergen Bros. Inc.
~L17 Knowlton Street
. Acme United Corp.
100 Hicks Street
N. DiCamillo & Sons Inc.
70 Chase Street
Ivan & Harriette Hirsch
L6 Northwood Road Fairfield, CT.
Anthony Lanese & Roger Cole
w1522 North Avenue
Jose & Ignacia Santiago
57 Kossuth Street
Andrew Leso
580 Kossuth Street
Camila Marie Mantua
+9108 Flower Avenue Silver Spring, MD.
«Jaseph Pizone
2320 East Main Street
St. Paul's Episcopal Church
v5908 Kossuth Street
Anthony Maresco
v36 Chatham Terrace
Anne Brignolo Hourcle'
v632 Kossuth Street
whnne Brignolo Hourcle'
632 Kossuth Street
v’Theodore Michael
105 Cornell Road Fairfield, CT.
Domenick Tedesco
«89 Cleveland Avenue
John & Ethel Kashulon
v686 Kossuth Street
Frederico & Zoraida Maldonado
56 Albion Street #16
Vébsephine, Peter & Daniel Riccio etals.
698 Kossuth Street
wGeorge & Donna Meier
2620 Nichols Avenue Stratford, CT.
Domenico & Artemese Staltaro
0L Kossuth Street
Andrew & Mary Grabowski
12 Kossuth Street
John & Marie Tedesco
v386 Taft Avenue
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7,0-6 Kossuth Street
751 Kossuth Street
752-8 Kossuth Street
754 Kossuth Street
757 Kossuth Street
763 Kossuth Street
770-2 Kossuth Street
773 Kossuth Street
787 Kossuth Street
62-72 Maple Street
8L Maple Street

9L Maple Street

97 Maple Street
100-6 Maple Street
103-11 Maple Street
110-14 Maple Street
117 Maple Street
118-20 Maple Street
163 Maple Street
216 Maple Street

275 Maple Street
167-73 Maple Street

“Alexander & Carrie Samorajczyk
7L0 Kossuth Street
James A. Barnett & Angelo Loconte
/1075 Madison Avenue
wdeanette A. Sakewicsz
758 Kossuth Street
voecond Baptist Church
7L Kossuth Street
Salvatore Studioso
757 Kossuth Street
vWalter Gelozin
5 Quail Trail Trumbull, CT.
heresa, Andrew & Mary Carnicky
772 Kossuth Street
vRemigio & Ramona Alvarez
773 Kossuth Street
YHenry R. Ochman
787 Kossuth Street
vGeorge Garrick
39 Harned Place Trumbull, CT.
Victoro & Ramonita Castro
8L Maple Street
VJennie Franz
94 Maple Street
YJulio & Mercedes Crusz
97 Maple Street
Jennie Franz
¥ 9L, Maple Street
wAnnino Angiolette etals.
103 Maple Street
wDonato DelPercio
114 Maple Street
vMatthew & Ferdinando DelPercio
114 Maple Street
vFrank & Edna Garbien
120 Maple Street
ary F. Zielinski & F.J. Zielinski Jr.
163 Maple Street
.Steve & Veronica Norko
w216 Maple Street
John, Joseph & Philip Micalizzi etals.
w275 Maple Street
vangel & Nancy Rodriguesz
1

67 Maple Street
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Following is a description of the major streetscapes of the
district, beginning with the north-south streets at the riverfront
and continuing east:

KNOWLTON STREET is an entirely industrial street and marks
the west boundary of the district. It is built largely on made
land, the area having been reclaimed from tidal mudflats in the
1870s. The river is lined with wooden wharves, some of which
are in good condition although the majority are in varying states
of disrepair {Photo 48). The block between Congress Street and
East Washington Avenue (Photo 49) contains some good quality
Civil War era mill buildings and is dominated by a four=-story
brick and granite structure with a cast iron storefront at the
southwest corner (12 Congress Street). The block between East
Washington Avenue and Arctic Street, which contains several
vacant lots and modern one-story buildings, is dominated by the
four story gable-roof Armstrong Mill (Photo 50) and its auxiliary
structures.

WILLTAM STREET contains a mix of brick row houses (Photos 39
and 43) and wood frame and brick:tenement houses (Photo 47) that
date from the 1880s as well as single houses constructed earlier
(Photos 41 and 44). The block bounded by William and Harriet
Streets and Crescent and East Washington Avenues was demolished
in the 1960s and replaced by a 12-story buff brick senior citizens
apartment house. This incongruous structure remains the only
major violation of the Victorian skyline of the district.

ARMSTRONG PLACE is a narrow one block-long street of thirteen
identical workers' cottages built right up to the sidewalk (Photo 46).
The street connects the Frank Armstrong House (Photo 44) with the
mill at the other end (Photo 50).

HARRIET STREET contains three blocks of brick row houses
along with middle class wood frame single and double houses that
date from between 1851 and 1890. At the corner of Barnum Avenue
is a concrete octagon house (erected 1853).

WASHINGTON PARK is bounded by Barnum, East Washington, and
Noble Avenues and Kossuth Street. The park itself is laid out
formally, with sidewalks radiating from a central point and maple,
elm, and linden shade trees planted in matching pairs. The band-
stand in the center, erected 1884, was designed by the Bridgeport
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architectural firm of Palliser, Palliser & Company (Photo 38).

A colonial style brick comfort station (Photo 37), the sidewalks,
benches, and most of the shade trees date from 1917. A cast
iron fence which probably dates back to 1865 encloses the five
acre space,

The park is surrounded almost entirely by harmonious nine-
teenth century structures (Photos 1 through 35)., Houses are
built in facing pairs across the park, and buildings in the
center of each block are set back an additional distance, The
largest buildings are those which anchor the corners. The archi-
tect for the development is undocumented, but Abram Skaats is
known to have designed many of the post-Civil War period struc-
tures, including virtually all the buildings along the north
front, Individual houses range in sige from ten to thirty rooms,

NOBLE AVENUE north of Washington Park contains a mixture of
high-basement brick row houses from the 1880s and double wood
frame houses of the '60s, The block bounded by Noble Avenue and
Arctic, Harriet, and Maple Streets is an open space surrounding
the two-story Romanesque Barnum School at the center.

PARK STREET, developed mostly in the 1860s, is lined with
single and double Italianate houses with an admixture of Queen
Anne cottages. Many of its original bluestone sidewalks and
cobbled treelawns remain intact.

KOSSUTH STREET north of the park is similar in character
to Noble Avenue with several Italianate double houses built in
the late 1860s as well as some later Victorian single and double
houses.

BEACH STREET contains single Italianate houses and later
flat-style two families, The integrity of the east side of the
block between Barnum Avenue and Maple Street has been compromised
by the demolition of three non-contiguous houses for the creation
of parking spaces.

The east-west side streets generally assume the character
of the nearest north-south thoroughfare.

Following is an inventory of the individual structures in
the district:



Form No, 10-300a
(Kev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE ‘

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

CONTINUATION SHEET ITEM NUMBER Y PAGE 4

Dates in parenthesis refer to newspaper articles used for documentation
concerning structures or their owners. Items appeared in the Bridgeport
Standard unless otherwise noted.

C 108 ARCTIC STREET--Italianate, c. 1875, 2 stories plus attic, flat roof,
3ige entrance, aluminum siding. Front entirely remodeled, probably
1960s.

C 116 ARCTIC STREET~--"Triple Decker", c, 1910, 3 stories, flat roof, side
- entrance, clapboarded.

¢ 122-6 ARCTIC STREET-~Two family, c. 1910, 2% stories, front gable roof,
center entrance, stucco & wood shingle siding.

C 130-4 ARCTIC STREET--Queen Anne, c. 1885, 2 stories plus attic, front &
side gable roof, side entrances, clapboard & wood shingle siding,
elaborate detail.

*C 138 ARCTIC STREET--Queen Anne, c. 1895, 2 stories plus attic, front
gable roof, side entrance, asbestos siding.

C GEORGE LONGSTAFF HOUSE, 178 Arctic Street--Queen Anne, 188)4, 2 stories
plus attic, hip roof,-center entrance, clapboarded with half-timber
detailing, slate roof, cast iron fence enclosure. Built for an
architect and building contractor.

C 189-91 ARCTIC STREET--Italianate, c. 1875, 2 stories, flat roof, center
entrance, asphalt siding.

C 1194 ARCTIC STREET=-~Queen Anne, c. 1885, 2 stories plus attic, front &
side gable roof, side entrance, asbestos siding.

C 201-3 ARCTIC STREET--Queen Anne, c, 1885, 2 stories plus attic, hip roof,
center entrance, asphalt siding.

C 211 ARCTIC STREET--Italianate, c. 1865, 2 stories plus attic, side gable
roof, center entrance, asbestos siding; front porches added.

C 217-19 ARCTIC STREET--Two family, c. 1925, 2% stories, front gable roof,
side entrance, clapboarded.

C 227 ARCTIC STREET~--Gothic, c. 1875, 2 stories plus attic, front & side
gable roof, side entrance, clapboarded.
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C 289 ARCTIC STREET--Italianate, c. 1870, 2 stories plus attiec, front
gible §oof, side entrance, asbestos sidxng, attic fenestration
altered.

C CALVIN LINES HOUSE, 301 Arctic Street--Italianate, 1872, 2 stories plus
attic, flat roof center entrance, clapboarded; arcuated porch &
fenestration. Built for a grocer.,

G 335-hl ARCTIC STREET--Italianate, c. 1870 2 stories, flat roof, flank
entrances, asphalt siding.

NC 351 ARCTIC STREET-~-c. 1955, 1 story, flat roof, concrete block; bakery
distribution warehouse.

C 373 ARCTIC STREET--Italianate, c. 1875, 2 stories plus attic, flat roof,
side entrance, asbestos siding.

C 383 ARCTIC STREET--Italianate, c. 1865, 2 stories plus attic, front gable
roof, side entrance, clapboarded.

C. 392 ARCTIC STREET--Queen Anne, 1891, 2 stories plus attlc, front gable
' roof, side entrance, aluminum 81ding. James Spargo, builder.

C 395 ARCTIC STREET--Italianate, c. 1875, 2 stories plus attic, flat roof,
side entrance, asbestos siding.

C 398 ARCTIC STREET--Queen Anne 1891 2 stories plus attiec, front gable
roof, side entrance, asphait sidlng. James Spargo, builder.

C hOh ARCTIC STREET--Queen Anne, 1891, 2 stories plus attiec, front gable
roof, side entrance, clapboarded. James Spargo, builder.

C 426-8 ARCTIC STREET--Italianate, c. 1880, 2 stories plus attic, flat roof,
' center entrance, asbestos siding.

C 434 ARCTIC STREET--Queen Anne, c. 1890, 2 stories plus attic, front
gable roof, side entrance, asbestos sidlng.

(Armstrong Place~-27 Apr. 1886)

C 1 ARMSTRONG PLACE--Queen Anne, 1885, 2 stories plus attic, front & side
gable roof, side entrance, aluminum siding.



Form No. 10-300a
{Kev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

"CONTINUATION SHEET : ITEM NUMBER 7 PAGE 6

C ADONIJAH FRENCH HOUSE, 2 Armstrong Place--Queen Anne, 1885, 23 stories,
front % side gable roof, side entrance, aluminum siding. Built for
a butcher,

C 3 ARMSTRONG PLACE--Queen Anne, 1885, 2 stories plus attic, front & side
gable roof, side entrance, asbestos siding.

C 4 ARMSTRONG PLACE--Queen Anne, 1885, 2 stories plus attic, front & side
gable roof, side entrance, clapboarded.

C 5 ARMSTRONG PLACE--Queen Anne, 1885, 2 stories plus attic, front & side
gable roof, side entrance, asbestos siding.

C 6 ARMSTRONG PLACE--Queen Anne, 1885, 2 stories plus attic, front & side
gable roof, side entrance, asbestos siding.

C 7 ARMSTRONG PLACE--Queen Anne, 1885, 2 stories plus attic, front & side
gable roof, aluminum siding.

C JAMES CHENY HOUSE, 8 Armstrong Place--Queen Anne, 1885, 2 stories plus
attic, front & side gable roof, side entrance, asbestos siding. Built
for a machinist at the Howe Sewing Machine Company.

C 9 ARMSTRONG PLACE--Queen Anne, 1885, 2 stories plus attic, front & side
gable roof, side entrance, aluminum siding.

C JAMES E. CAMP HOUSE, 10 Armstrong Place--Queen Anne, 1885, 2 stories plus
attic, front & side gable roof, side entrance, asbestos siding. Built
for a contractor for the Sewing Machine Cabinet Company.

C 11 ARMSTRONG PLACE-~-Queen Anne, 1885, 2 stories plus attic, front & side
gable roof, side entrance, asphalt siding.

C JOHN J, AMORY HOUSE,‘lz Armstrong Place--Queen Anne, 1885, 2 stories plus
attic, front & side gable roof, side entrance, asbestos siding. Built
for a bookkeeper for the Armstrong Manufacturing Company.

C 13 ARMSTRONG PLACE--Queen Anne, 1885, 2 stories plus attic, front & side
gable roof, side entrance, asbestos siding.

C 68-70 BARNUM AVENUE~-Italianate, c. 1880, 2 stories plus attic, flat roof,
side entrance, asphalt siding.

C 76-8 BARNUM AVENUE--Italianate, c. 1880, 2 stories plus attic, flat roof,
' side entrance, clapboarded.
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84~6 BARNUM AVENUE--Italianate, c. 1880, 2 stories plus attic, flat
roof, side entrance, clapboarded.

91-3 BARNUM AVENUE--Queen Anne, c, 1895, 2% stories, front & side gable
roof, side entrance, asbestos siding.

94~6 BARNUM AVENUE--Gothic, c. 1875, 2 stories plus attic, side gable
roof, center entrance, asphalt siding.

101-3 BARNUM AVENUE--Queen Anne, c. 1895, 23 stories, hip roof, center
entrance, asbestos siding.

102-4 BARNUM AVENUE--Swiss Chalet, c. 1875, 2 stories plus attic, side
gable roof, center entrance, asphalt siding.

110-14 BARNUM AVENUE--"Triple Decker", c¢. 1915, 3 stories, flat roof,
center entrance, asbestos siding.

WM. T. MACFARLANE - JOHN H. SANDERSON HOUSE, 163-9 Barnum Avenue--Queen
Anne, 1886, 2 stories plus attic, hip roof, center entrance, clapboard
& shingle siding.

OCTAGON HOUSE, 200 Barnum Avenue--~Italianate, 1853, 2 stories plus attic,
monitor roof, gravel wall with stuccoed exterior; reputedly built by
P.T. Barnum (Bridgegort Post 15 Dec. 1929, 26 Aug, 193k, 7 July 1939;
New Haven Register "Sunday Pictorial® 4 Oct. 1970).

DAVID WOOSTER HOUSE, 208 Barnum Avenue--Italianate, 1879, 2 stories plus
attic, flat roof, side entrance, clapboarded. Built for a dry goods
merchant .

WASHINGTON PARK M.E. CHURCH, 235 Barnum Avenue-~Gothic, 1883, corner
tower, brick with elaborate terra cotta trim. Lawrence B. Valk, New
York, architect (11 Jan. 1883, 17 Feb. 1883, 27 Feb. 1883, 1 Mar. 1883,
L Mar. 188L4; Bridgeport Post 13 Mar. 1909),

ISAAC SMITH HOUSE, 255 Barnum Avenue--Asymmetrical Italian villa, 1873,

2 stories plus attic, center entrance, clapboarded; top of central
tower removed, extensive exterior remodeling 1950s. Built for a
grocer; Abram Skaats, architect.

JOHN WESSELS - CHAUNCEY MORTON HOUSE, 269-71 Barnum Avenue--Mansard, 1869.
2 stories plus attic, center entrance, asphalt siding. Built for a
grocer and a contractor; Abram Skaats, architect (2 May 1868, 31 Mar.
1869, 22 May 1869).
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C AUGUSTUS DUPEE HOUSE, 281 Barnum Avenue--Mansard, 1872, 2 stories plus
attie, side entrance, aluminum siding, "colonial" portico added
gééé?ho. Built for a tool maker; Abram Skaats, architect (26 May

C PARK STREET CONGREGATIONAL CHURCH, 301 Barnum Avenue--Gothic, 1870,
corner tower with broached spire, side and corner entrances, aluminum
siding. Abram Skaats, architect (8 Sept. 1869, 30 Aug. 1870, 10 Sept.
1870, 2 Nov, 1870, 3 Mar, 1871, 24 July 1871, 30 Aug. 1871, 1L Sept.
1871, 11 Sept. 1885; Bridgeport Post 28 Mar. 1903, 22 May 1903).

C GEORGE RICHARDSON HOUSE, 331 Barnum Avenue--Queen Anne, 1887, 2% stories,
front & side gable roof, center entrance, aluminum siding. Built for
the supt. of the Consolidated Safety Valve Co.; Henry A. Lambert,
architect (13 Aug. 1887, 28 Feb. 1891).

C CLAUDIUS R. HAYWARD HOUSE, 361 Barnum Avenue--Mansard, 1868, 2% stories,
central tower & entrance, brick. Built for a Wheeler & Wilson Co.
contractor and real estate developer; Abram Skaats, architect (15 Apr.
%iég, 25133%5 1868, 22 May 1869, 16 June 1869; Bridgeport Post

an. .

C DANIEL E. MARSH ROW HOUSES, 374-86 Barnum Avenue--Queen Anne, 1882, 5
units, 2 stories plus English basement, flat roof, side entrances,
brick with terra cotta ornamentation (sandblastedi. Built as income
property; Palliser, Palliser & Co., architects (9 Sept. 1882).

C A.W. BURRITT HOUSE, 385 Barnum Avenue--Queen Anne, 1892, 2% stories,
hip roof, side entrance, clapboarded. Built for the owner of a
lumber company.

C GEORGE HAYES HOUSE, 408 Barnum Avenue--Mansard, 187k, 2 stories plus
attic, side entrance, clapboarded, barrel front with banded Corinthian
order pilasters added 1890s.

C 25~7 BEACH STREET--Queen Anne, c, 1895, 2 stories plus attic, front gable
roof, side entrance, clapboarded.

C 28-32 BEACH STREET--Italianate, c. 1865, 2 stories plus attic, front
gable roof, flank entrances, asphalt siding.

C 31~3 BEACH STREET--Queen Anne, 1891, 2 stories plus attic, front gable
roof, side entrance, asphalt siding.
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C 34.BEACH STREET--Gothic church, c¢. 1890, front gable roof, center tower,
permastone tower.

C 37-9 BEACH STREET--Italianate, 1891, 2 stories, flat roof, side entrance,
asbestos siding.

C 56 BEACH STREET--Ttalianate, c. 1875, 2 stories plus attic, front gable
roof, center entrance, aluminum siding; extended at rear.

C 62 and 74 BEACH STREET--Gothie, e¢. 1880, 2 stories plus attic, front &
side gable roofs, side entrances, wood shingle and asbestos siding.

C DANIEL E. MARSH ROW HOUSES, 63-71 Beach Street--Queen Anne, 1882, 4 units,
3 stories, flat roof, side entrances, brick. Built as income property;
Palliser, Palliser & Co., architects.

C ISAAC ROBBINS HOUSE, 126 Beach Street--Italianate, 1872, 2 stories, flat
roof, side entrance, asbestos siding.

C HOBART FRENCH HOUSE, 135 Beach Street--Queen Anne, 1884, 2 stories plus
attic, front gable roof, aluminum siding. Built for a bookkeeper at
the Armstrong Mfg. Co.

C 138 BEACH STREET--Queen Anne, 1884, 2 stories plus attie, hip roof, side
entrance, clapboarded; elaborate detail, cast iron roof cresting.

C RICHARD BREUL HOUSE, 141-3 Beach Street--Queen Anne, 1890, 2 stories plus
attie, truncated side gable roof, side entrances, clapboard & shingle
siding. Built for the Superintendent of the Bridgeport Chain Co.

C JONATHAN HALL HOUSE, 153 Beaeh Street--Italianate, 1869, 2 stories plus
attie, front gable roof, side entrance, asbestos siding. Built for
a moulder (22 May 1869).

C GEORGE E. CHRISTIE HOUSE, 163-5 Beach Street--Italianate, 1884, 2 stories
plus aitic, flat roof, side entrance, asphalt siding. Built for a
toolmaker,

C 184-6 BEACH STREET=-Two family, e¢. 1910, 2 stories plus attie, hip roof,
center entrance, asphalt siding.

C JOHN M. TERRILL HOUSE, 189 Beach Street--Queen Anne, 1893, 2 stories plus
attic, hip roof, side entrance, asphalt siding; corner octagonal tower
with copper weathervane.
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G 192-4 BEACH STREET~--Two family, c¢. 1910, 2 stories plus attic, hip
roof, center entrance, asphalt siding.

C 195«7 BEACH STREET-~Gothic, c. 1880, 2 stories plus attic, front &
side gable roof, side entrance, aluminum siding. Porches subsequent.

C 198-204 BEACH STREET--Queen Anne, ¢. 1900, 2 stories plus attic, hip
roof, side entrance, barrel front, clapboarded.

C 208-12 BEACH STREET--Queen Anne, c¢. 1900, 2 stories plus attie, hip roof,
side entrance, barrel front, aluminum siding.

€ 211 BEACH STREET--Italianate, c. 1870, 3 stories, flat roof, center en-
trance, asbestos siding; top floor and porches added c. i900.

~C 218-20 BEACH STREET--Queen Anne, 1891, 2 stories plus attic, front
' gable roof, side entrance, ciapboard & shingle siding.

C 221-3 BEACH STREET--Italianate, ¢, 1870, 2 stories plus attic, flat
roof, center entrance, asbestos siding.

C 224 BEACH STREET--Queen Anne, 1891, 2 stories plus attic, side gable
' rogié side entrance, clapboard & shingle siding. James Spargo,
builder.

C 259 BEACH STREET--Queen Anne, 1891, 2 stories plus attic, front gable
roof, side entrance, asbestos s{ding. James Spargo, builder.

C WHEELER & HOWES COAL CO. BUILDING, 12 Congress Street--Erected 1882,
: L stories, flat roof, brick with granite trim (sandblasted), lst
story cast iron storefront.

C HOTEL DREW GARAGE, 67 Crescent Avenue-~Erected 1910, 1 story, step
gable roof, concrete block construction.

C 293~7 EAST WASHINGTON AVENUE--c. 1910, 3 stories plus attic, front gable
rooié“genter entrance, asbestos siéing, basement storefront installed
c. 1930,

C 311-21 EAST WASHINGTON AVENUE--Queen Anne, c. 1885, 4 unit row house, 23
stories, mansard roof, side entrances, brick with wood shingled bays
(partiaily aluminum sided).

C 324-6 EAST WASHINGTON AVENUE--Queen Anne, 1884, 2 stories, flat roof,
side entrance, brick.
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C 365 EAST WASHINGTON AVENUE--Italianate, c. 1865, 2 stories plus attic,
flagggg?f, center entrance, brick veneer over clapboards (installed
Ce .

NC 376 EAST WASHINGTON AVENUE--1967, 12 stories, Y-shaped, buff brick
exterior. Harborview Senior Citizens Apartments.

C 379 EAST WASHINGTON AVENUE--Italian Renaissance, 1931, cut granite,
' ggublﬁ flanking towers with gilded domes. Holy Rosary Catholic
urch,

C DAVID BOOTH HOUSE, 426 East Washington Avenue--Greek Revival, 18515,
2 stories plus attie, hip roof, side entrance, clapboarded, lst
floor totally remodeied early 19705. Built for a coach painter.

C SONS OF ITALY CLUB, A74 East Washington Avenue--Colonial, 1936, 2
stories, flat roof, center entrance, brick.

C DR. EDWARD FITZGERALD HOUSE, 480 East Washington Avenue--Colonial Revival,
1893, 2 stories plus attic, hip roof, center entrance, clapboarded.

C GEORGE & JOSEPH IRVING HOUSE, 496 East Washington Avenue--Italianate,
1851-5, 2 stories plus attic, monitor roof, center entrance, asbestos
siding. Built for coach buiiders.

¢ P.L. PERRY HOUSE, 512 East Washington Avenue--Italianate, 1865, 2
stories plus attie, hip roof, center entrance, asphalt siding. Built
for the ass't. supt. of the Wheeler & Wilson Sewing Machine Co.;
Lambert & Bunnell, architects (14 Sept. 186k; photo, Bridgeport Post,
20 Feb, 1916).,

C ROW HOUSES, 526=3L East Washington Avenue--Queen Anne, 1882, 3 units,
2% stor{es over English basement, mansard roof, side entrances,
brick with extensive terra cotta ornamentation. Original tenants
were Dr. Edward M. Fitzgerald, John Hotchkiss, sec'y., B. Goodman
& Co., and Jane Sherwood, widow; Palliser, Pailiser & Co., architects.

C BETHESDA MISSION, 540 East Washington Avenue--Romanesque, 1866, front
gable roof, brick. Present cornice dates from 1902. Lambert &
Bunnell, original architects (30 Aug. 1865, 22 Oct. 1866, 23 Feb. 1867
Bridgeport Post 25 Apr. 1902, 6 May 1902, 14 Sept. 1906).

C JOHN BARR HOUSE, 572 East Washington Avenue--Italianate, 1851-5, 2
stories plus attic, flat roof, side entrance, asphalt siding.
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C PLUMB BROTHERS MEAT MARKET, 619-21 East Washington Avenue--Italianate,
1869, 3 stories, flat roof (front step-gabled), brick with arcuated
terra cotta window lintels. Abram Skaats, architect (25 Sept. 1869).

C ST. PAULUS GERMAN LUTHERAN CHURCH, 66 Harriet Street--Gothic, 1893, front
able roof, corner tower (spire removed), clapboard & shingle siding
%21 Apr. 1894).

C GEORGE WATERBURY HOUSE, 76 Harriet Street--Italianate, 1851-5, 2 stories
plus attic, front gable roof, side entrance, asbestos siding; front
veranda replaced by smaller portico. Built for a dry goods merchant.

C HENRY N. BEARDSLEY HOUSE, 88 Harriet Street--Italianate, 1869, 2 stories
plus attic, flat roof, side entrance, brick with brownstone basement.
Built for a dredger and bridge and dock builder.

C HENRY T. HAWLEY HOUSE, 161-3 Harriet Street--Cothic/Queen Anne, 1880, 2
‘ stories plus attic, front gable roof, side entrance, asbestos siding.
Built for a silver plater at the Wheeler & Wilson Company.

C SAMUEL LARKIN HOUSE, 175 Harriet Street--Italianate, 1857-61, 2 stories
plus attic, monitor roof, center entrance, aluminum siding. Built for
a machinist.

C ELI DEWHURST ROW, 185-91 Harriet Street--Queen Anne, 1884, 3 units, 3
' stories, flat roof, side entrances, brick with terra cotta decoration.

C ANDREW BURKE HOUSE, 192-6 Harriet Street--Italianate, 1857-61, 2 stories
plus attic, front gable roof, side entrance, clapboarded.

C JAMES BISHOP - CHARLES MINOR HOUSE, 200-08 Harriet Street--Italianate,
1855, 2 stories, flat roof, flank entrances, asbestos siding. Built
for a salesman and a nurseryman (12 Dec. 1907).

C ELI DEWHURST ROW, 201-9 Harriet Street--Italianate, 1880, 4 units, 2
stories over high basement, flat roof, side entrances, brick.

C 217-19 HARRIET STREET--Italianate, 1880, 2 stories, flat roof, center en-
trance, asbestos siding. Built as income property by P.T. Barnum,

C GILES W. SCOTT HOUSE, 261 Harriet Street--Gothic, 1855-7, 2 stories plus
attic, front gable roof, side entrance, asphalt siding over board &
batten. Built for a match maker; moved in 1880 from the SW corner of
Barnum Avenue & Harriet Street.
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C WASHINGTON PARK M.E., PARSONAGE, 272 Harriet Street--Italianate, 1858,
2 stories plus attic, flat roof, side entrance, aluminum siding.

C FRANK ARMSTRONG CARRIAGE HOUSE, 273 Harriet Street--Mansard, c. 1880, i%
stories, mansard roof, side entrance, "Frear's Artificial Stone" con-
struction (13 July 1871). See 272 William Street for main house.

C JOHN N. KRAPP HOUSE, 290 Harriet Street--Italianate, 1851-5, 2 stories
plus attic, front gable roof, side entrance, clapboarded. Built for
a machinist,

C DWIGHT WHEELER HOUSE, 293 Harriet Street--Queen Anne, 1891, 2 stories
plus attic, hip roof, side entrance, asbestos siding. Built for the
President of the Acme Shear Company.

C WILLIAM T. HOWES HOUSE, 295 Harriet Street--Italianate, 1872, 2 stories
plus attie, front gable roof, side entrance, aluminum siding. Built
for the President of the Wheeler & Howes Coal Company.

CHARLES BARNES HOUSE, 298-300 Harriet Street--Italianate, 1882, 2 stories,
flat roof, center entrance, clapboarded.

C 341-3 HARRIET STREET--Queen Anne, c. 1880, 2 stories plus attic, side
gable roof, center entrance, asbestos siding.

(@]

C 353-5 HARRIET STREET--Italianate, c. 1865, 2 stories plus attic, front
gable roof, side entrance, aluminum siding.

(Knowlton Street--19 Aug. 1887)
C 63 KNOWLTON STREET--Industrial, c. 1865 & 1900, brick & wood frame.

C 70-2 KNOWLTON STREET--Industrial, Italianate, c. 1875, 2 stories, flat
roof, brick; lst story with Neo-Grec cast iron front & brick detail.

C 71-9 KNOWLTON STREET--Industrial, c. 1865, 3% stories, front gable roof,
brick.

82 KNOWLTON STREET--Industrial, ¢. 1900, 2 stories, flat roof, brick.

aQ o

116 KNOWLTON STREET--Industrial, c. 1910, 2 stories, flat roof, textured
concrete block.

Q

1,0 KNOWLTON STREET--Industrial, c. 1880, 2 stories, flat roof, brick.
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NC 198 KNOWLTON STREET--Industrial, c¢. 1935, 1 story, flat roof, brick.
NC 211 KNOWLTON STREET-~Industrial, c. 1935, 1 story, flat roof, brick.

NC 232 KNOWLTON STREET-~Industrial, c. 1950, 1 story, flat roof, con-
crete block.

NC 240~8 KNOWLTON STREET--Industrial, early 20th century, 1 story, flat
roof, wood frame.

C ARMSTRONG MILL, 275-305 Knowlton Street--Industrial, 1883, 33} stories,
side gable roof, brick (9 Jan., 1883).

C 286 KNOWLTON STREET=--Industrial
roof, bevel edged concrete b

C OLD WASHINGTON PARK M.E. CHURCH, 335 Knowlton Street--Greek Revival,
1854, 1 story, front gable roof, center entrance, clapboarded. Now
industrial.

C OLD ARMSTRONG MILL, 337 Knowlton Street--Industrial, 1872, 2% stories,
side gable roof, clapboarded.

C 388-402 KNOWLTON STREET--Industrial, c. 1900, 2 stories, triple front
gable roof, sheet iron & stucco siding over wood frame.

C 415-25 KNOWLTON STREET--Industrial, c. 1900, 2 stories plus attic, side
gable roof, pebble-textured stucco over wood frame.

C 554~8 KOSSUTH STREET--1915, 3 stories, flat roof, side entrance, wood
shingle siding. First story stuccoed. (19 Aug. 1887).

564 KOSSUTH STREET--1915, 3 stories, flat roof, center entrance, asphalt
siding. First story brick (19 Aug. 1887).

C WALTER SKINNER HOUSE, 574 Kossuth Street--Queen Anne, 1888, 2 stories
plus attic, front & side gable roof, side entrance, wood shingle
siding. Built for a machinist.

¢, 1920, 1 story, front step-gable
{ock.

Q

C ROW HOUSES, 580-L Kossuth Street--Queen Anne-Romanesque, 1889, 3 units,
2} stories, mansard and front gable roofs, side entrances, brick
with brownstone trim, projecting wood front bays (2 covered with
aluminum siding). James Spargo, builder (2 Oct. 1889); original -
occupants were Elliot Curtis, hard goods dealer, Mary Chamberlain,
and Rev, Henry M. Sherman.
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C ST. PAUL'S RECTORY, 592 Kossuth Street--Mansard with Gothic detailing,
1868, 2 stories plus attic, mansard roof, side entrance, cut granite
(see church for references).

C ST. PAUL'S EPISCOPAL CHURCH, 598 Kossuth Street--Gothic, 1868, front
gable roof with corner tower, center entrance, cut granite. E.T.
Littell, New York, architect (13 June 1868, 8 Oct. 1868, 18 May 1880;
Bridgeport Post 5 Mar. 1892).

C WILLIAM & STEPHEN CONGER HOUSE, 616-18 Kossuth Street--Italianate, 185},
3 stories plus attic, side gable roof, center entrance, clapboarded.
Built for coach trimmers (remodeled 1é6h by John Barr).

C ORANGE MERWIN HOUSE, 630 Kossuth Street--Queen Anne, 1882, 2 stories
plus attic, front gable roof, side entrance, clapboard & wood shingle
siding. Built for an insurance agent; Palliser, Palliser & Co.,
architects,

C DANIEL E. MARSH HOUSE, 632 Kossuth Street--Queen Anne, 1881, 2 stories
plus attic, front gable roof, side entrance, asbestos siding. Built
for a contractor for the Wheeler & Wilson Co.; Palliser, Palliser &
Co., architects.

C PHILO BFACH HOUSE, 669-75 Kossuth Street--Italianate, 1868, 2% stories,
flat roof, center entrance, clapboarded. Built for a stable keeper.

C BURTON W. LEONARD HOUSE, 683-5 Kossuth Street--Italianate, 1868, 2}
stories, flat roof, center entrance, clapboarded. Built as income
property for a stove dealer.

C CHARLES A. HOTCHKISS HOUSE, 693-5 Kossuth Street--Italianate, 1868, 2%
stories, flat roof, center entrance, clapboarded. Built as income
property for a hardware manufacturer.

C 696-8 KOSSUTH STREET--Queen Anne, 1900, 2 stories plus attic, hip roof,
side entrance, clapboard & shingle siding.

C J. GILES HOUSE, 703 Kossuth Street--Italianate, 1866, 2 stories plus
attic, flat roof, side entrance, clapboarded. Built for a foreman
at the Bridgeport Iron Works.

C 704=-6 KOSSUTH STREET--Queen Anne, 1900, 2 stories plus attic, hip roof,
side entrance, clapboard & shingle siding.
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C STEPHEN M. CONGER HOUSE, 712-14 Kossuth Street--Italianate, 1869, 2
stories plus attic over high basement, flat roof, center entrance,
aluminum siding (28 June 1869).

C DAVID SYPHER GROCERY, 713-19 Kossuth Street--Italianate, 1872, 2 stories
plus attic, first floor storefront, flat roof, aluminum siding. Re-
portedly the oldest grocery in the city.

C 740 KOSSUTH 3TREET--Queen Anne, c¢. 1890, 2 stories plus attic, side gable
roof, side entrance, aluminum siding.

C 751-7 KOSSUTH STREET--Italianate, c. 1870, 2 stories plus attic, flat
roof, flank entrances, clapboarded.

C 756=-8 KOSSUTH STREET--Italianate, ¢. 1865, 2 stories plus attic, side
gable roof, center entrance, asbestos siding.

C 763 KO3SUTH STREET--Cape Cod, c¢. 1945, 1} stories, side gable roof, center
entrance, brick.

C 770-2 KOSSUTH STREET--Two family, c¢. 1925, 2% stories, side gable roof,
side entrance, wood shingle siding.

C 773 KOSSUTH STREET--Italianate, c. 1875, 2 stories plus attic, front &
side gable roof, flank entrance, aluminum siding, front fenestration
altered.

C SECOND BAPTIST CHURCH, 774 Kossuth Street--Gothic, 1902, front & side
gable roof, corner tower with entrances, brick with stucco (25 Apr.
1902, 6 May 1902).

C 787 KOSSUTH STREET--Two family, e¢. 1910, 2% stories, front & side gable
roof, side entrance, aluminum siding.

C 64-72 MAPLE STREET--Italianate, c., 1870, 2% stories, side gable roof,
center entrances, clapboarded (front facade aluminum sided).

C 84-8 MAPLE STREET--"Triple Decker", c. 1910, 3 stories, flat roof, side
entrance, clapboarded.,

C 94 MAPLE STREET--Queen Anne, c. 1885, 2 stories plus attic, front gable
roof, side entrance, asbestos siding.
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C 97 MAPLE STREET--Italianate, c. 1875, 2} stories, front gable roof, side
entrance, clapboarded.

C 100-06 MAPLE STREET--Queen Anne, c. 1885, 2 stories plus attic, front
gable roof, flank entrance, asbestos siding.

C 103-11 MAPLE STREET--Italianate, c. 1875, 2 stories plus attic, flat roof,
flank entrance, asbestos siding.

C J.E. & G.W. CAMP HOUSE, 110-1k Maple Street--Queen Anne, 1884, 2 stories
plus attic, front & side truncated gable roof, flank entrances, clap-
boarded. Built for two contractors for the Sewing Machine Cabinet Co.

C 117 MAPLE STREET--Gothic, c. 1875, 2 stories plus attic, side gable roof,
center entrance, asphalt siding.

C 118-20 MAPLE STREET--Italianate, c. 1880, 2 stories plus attic, flat roof,
side entrance, clapboarded.

C JAMES SPARGO HOUSE, 163 Maple Street--Queen Anne, 1890, 2 stories plus
attic, hip roof, side entrance, clapboard & Shingle siding. Built for
a housing contractor,

C ISAAC N. FORRESTER HOUSE, 169-73 Maple Street--Italianate, 1869, 2 stories
plus attic, monitor roof, flank entrances, clapboarded. Buiit for an
inventor (28 June 1869, 3 Sept. 1869, 9 Feb, 1870, 21 Sept. 1870).

C WILLIS BRONSON HOUSE, 216 Maple Street--Italianate, 1879, 2 stories plus
attic, flat roof, side entrance, asphalt siding. Built for a machinist.

C ELIAS TAYLOR HOUSE, 275 Maple Street--Italianate, 1851-5, 2 stories plus
attic, flat roof, side entrance, aluminum siding. Built for a carpenter.,

C EDWARD TOUCEY HOUSE, 289 Maple Street--Queen Anne, 1881, 2 stories plus
attic, hip roof, center entrance, clapboarded. Built for a druggist;
Henry A. Lambert, architect (6 Jan., 1881).

C JOHN & FRANCIS STEVENS HOUSE, 330 Maple Street--Italianate, 1855-7, 2
stories plus attiec, flat roof, side entrance, clapboarded. Buiit for
a shoemaker and a saddler.

C JOHN KEPPY HOUSE, 331-5 Maple Street--Italianate, 1869, 2 stories plus
attic, flat roof, center entrance, asbestos siding. Built for an
engineer,
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C 343 MAPLE STREET--Italianate, c. 1875, 2 stories plus attic, front gable
roof, side entrance, aluminum siding.

C 375 MAPLE STREET--Queen Anne, c. 1885, 2 stories plus attic, hip roof,
center entrance, asphalt siding.

C 378-80 MAPLE STREET--Queen Anne, 1892, 2 stories plus attic, front gable
roof, side entrance, clapboard & shingle siding.

C SHELDON MORRIS HOUSE, 303 Noble Avenue--Italianate, 1858, 2 stories plus
attic, monitor roof, side entrance, clapboarded. Buiit for the head
of the cabinet making division of the Wheeler & Wilson Co. (Bridge-
port Post 28 Aug. 1918),

C WILLIAM H, PERRY HOUSE, 335 Noble Avenue--Italianate, 1857, 2 stories
plus attie, monitor roof, center entrance, aluminum siding. Built
fo§ath§833§'y. & treas. of the Wheeler & Wilson Co. (Bridgeport Post
9 May . —_—=

C FREDERICK HURD HOUSE, 349-55 Noble Avenue--Italianate-Queen Anne, 1855.7
and 1888, 2% stories, hip roof, flank entrances, clapboard & shingle
siding. Built for a bookkeeper (Bridgeport Post 19 Jan. 1897).

C 5.C. KINGMAN HOUSE, 373 Noble Avenue--Italianate, 1870, 2 stories plus
attic, front & side gable roof, center entrance, asphalt & asbestos
-8iding. Built for a contractor for the Wheeler & Wilson Co.; Abram
Skaats, architect (7 May 1870).

C ISAAC KEELER HOUSE, 385-7 Noble Avenue--Greek Revival, 1854, 2 stories
plus attic, side gable roof, center entrance, aluminum siding. Built
for a carriage maker (17 July 1886).

C MOSES REDSHAW HOUSE, LOl Noble Avenue--Queen Anne, 1887, 2 stories plus
attic, front & side gable roof, side entrance, asbestos siding.
Built for a toolmaker.

C ELI DEWHURST HOUSE, 409 Noble Avenue--Queen Anne, 1886, 2 stories plus
attic, front & side gable roof, side entrance, clapboard & shingle
siding. Built for a contractor for the Wheeler & Wilson Co.; Charles
T. Beardsley, architect.

C MORGAN SEELYE HOUSE, 458 Noble Avenue--Greek Revival, 1851-5, 2 stories
plus attic, flat roof, side entrance, asphalt siding. Built for a

carpenter; Italianate cornice added c. 187s5.
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C WASHINGTON PARK M.E. PARSONAGE, 459 Noble Avenue--Queen Anne-Romanesque,
1889, 2 stories plus attic, hip roof, center entrance, brick. Henry
A. Lambert, architect.

C HUGH SYMINGTON HOUSE, 468-70 Noble Avenue--Italianate, 1871, 2% stories,
flat roof, center entrance, asbestos siding. Built for a coachman.

C DANIEL H. FERRIS ROW HOUSES, 469-73 Noble Avenue--Queen Anne, 1883, 3
units, 2 stories plus attic over high basement, flat roof, side en-
trances, brick with terra cotta trim. Built as income property for
machinist; Palliser, Palliser & Co., architects.

C GEORGE C. COTTRELL HOUSE, 478-80 Noble Avenue--Italianate, 1870, 23
stories, flat roof, center entrance, clapboarded. Built for a car-
pen‘ber .

C FRANK SPERRY - DANIEL H. FERRIS HOUSE, 483-5 Noble Avenue--Italianate,
1875, 2 stories plus attic, flat roof, center entrance, aluminum
siding. Built for two machinists.,

C SARAH KELLY HOUSE, 486-92 Noble Avenue--Italianate, 1871, 2% stories,
flat roof, center entrance, aluminum siding.

C 508-10 NOBLE AVENUE--Queen Anne, c. 1890, 2% stories, gable on hip roof,
side entrance, aluminum siding.

C 518-20 NOBLE AVENUE--Queen Anne, c. 1890, 2% stories, front & side gable
roof, side entrance, clapboard & shingle siding.

C 528-30 NOBLE AVENUE--Queen Anne, ¢, 1890, 2% stories, front & side gable
roof, side entrance, clapboard & shingle siding.

C BARNUM SCHOOL, 529 Noble Avenue--Romanesque, 1890, 2 stories, flat roof
(3rd story and hip roof removed after 1937 fire), center entrance
brick & brownstone., Longstaff & Hurd, architects (4 Mar. 1890, 14 Mar,
1891, 22 May 1891).

C 530-2 NOBLE AVENUE--"Triple Decker", c. 1910, 3 stories, flat roof, side
entrance, asbestos siding.

¢ J.H. LUDDINGTON HOUSE, 536-42 Noble Avenue--Italianate, 1869, 2 stories
p%gs)attic over high basement, flank entrances, clapboarded (3 Sept.
1869).
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548~50 NOBLE AVENUE--Italianate, c. 1875, 2 stories plus attic, front
gable roof, side entrance, clapboard & wood shingle siding.

560 NOBLE AVENUE--Italianate, c. 1875, 2 stories plus attic, flat roof,
wood shingle siding, lst floor converted to storefront.

583 NOBLE AVENUE--Italianate, c. 1875, 2 stories plus attic, flat roof,
side entrance, asbestos siding.

BAPTIST PARSONAGE, 23 Park Street--Italianate, 1884, 2 stories plus
‘attie, flat roof, side entrance, clapboarded.

JOHN S. WOOSTER HOUSE, 24 Park Street--Queen Anne, 1886, 2 stories plus
attic, front gable roof, side entrance, clapboarded. Built for a
dry goods merchant (1l June 1886).

GARRITUS N. BRONSON HOUSE, 29-35 Park Street--Italianate, 1868, 2 stories
plus attic, flat roof, flank entrances, clapboarded. Built for an
engineer.

DAVID & JOHN WOOSTER HOUSE, 34~6 Park Street--Italianate, 1873, 2 stories
plus attic over high basement, flat roof, center entrance, clapboarded.
Built for two dry goods merchants (6 June 1868),

WILLIAM SQUIRES HOUSE, 46 Park Street--Italianate, 1851-5, 2 stories
plus attic, flat roof, center entrance, wood shingle siding; fenestra-
tion altered. Built for a saddletree maker.

CHARLES COESTER HOUSE, 47 Park Street--Italianate, 1871, 2 stories plus
attic, front gable roof, side entrance, asphalt siding. Built for a
contractor for the Howe Sewing Machine Company.

JUSTUS R. JEWETT HQUSE, 55 Park Street--Italianate, 1879, 2% stories,
front gable roof, side entrance, asphalt siding. Built for a cartridge
maker,

JOHN KEPPY HOUSE, 60 Park Street--Italianate, 1879, 2 stories plus attic,
flat roof, side entrance, aluminum siding. Built for an engineer.

GEORGE WINTON - CHARLES WHERLER HOUSE, 6le7 Park Street--Italianate, 1883,
2 stories plus attic over high basement, front gable roof, flank en-
trances, asbestos siding. Buillt for a grocer and a shoemaker.

MRS, CHARLES WARD HOUSE, 68 Park Street--Mansard, 1876, 2} stories, front
& side gable mansard roof, side entrance, brick {3 Mar. 1876);
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(Bridgeport Post 1 Aug. 1898; Palliser's Model Homes for the People,
Design 29).

C ORCUTT BOYS' CLUB, 102 Park Street--Colonial, 1930, 2 stories over high
basement, flat roof, center entrance, brick. ’

C 105 PARK STREET--Itallanate, 1867, 2 stories plus attic, side gable roof,A
side entrance, aluminum siding. Peter Norman, builder (7 May 1867).

C 111-19 PARK STREET--Italianate, 1867, 2 stories plus attic, side gable
§ggg center entrance, clapboarded. Peter Norman, builder (7 May

C 116-18 PARK STREET--Italianate, 1867, 2 stories plus attic, side gable
§gg$} center entrance, asbestos siding. Peter Norman, builder (7 May

C 122-4 PARK STREET--Italianate, 1867, 2 stories plus attic, flat roof
flank entrance, aluminum s{ding. Peter Norman, builder (7 May 1857).

C 125 PARK STREET--Italianate, 1867, 2 stories plus attic, front gable
{gggs side entrance, asbestos siding. Peter Norman, builder (7 May

C 135 PARK STREET--Italianate, c. 1870, 2 stories plus attic, front gable
roof', side entrance, asbestos siding.

C 136-8 PARK STREET--Italianate, c. 1880, 2 stories plus attic, flat roof,
center entrance, asbestos slding.

C F.O. 3EELEY HOUSE, 158-60 Park Street--Italianate, 1879, 2 stories plus
attic, hip roof, center entrance, clapboarded. Has cornerstone at
south front corner (Bridgeport Republican Farmer, 17 July 1879).

C 15«19 WILLIAM-STREET--Greek Revival, c. 1855, 2 stories plus attic, front
gable roof, flank entrances, asphalt siding.

NC 35-9 WILLIAM STREET-~Industrial, c. 1945, 1 story, conecrete block.
NC 65 WILLIAM STREET-~Industrial, c. 1965, 1 story, concrete block.

C 71-5 WILLIAM STREET--"Triple Decker", c. 1910, 3 stories, flat roof,
side entrance, asphalt siding.
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C 77-93 WILLIAM STREET--Queen Anne, c¢. 1885, 5-unit row house, 2% stories,
mansard roof, side entrances, bBrick with projecting wood bays.

C CLARK MARSH BLOCK, 99-115 William Street--Queen Anne, 1884, 6-unit row
house, 3 stories, flat roof, side entrances, brick with terra cotta
trim, Palliser, Palliser & éo., architects (18 Feb. 1884).

NC lbliWIiLIAM STREET--Cas station, c. 1930, 1 story, flat roof, concrete
block.

C 159 WILLIAM STREET--Ttalianate, c. 1875, 2 stories plus attic, flat roof,
side entrance, clapboarded.

C "THE GEORGE" APARTMENTS, 162-4 William Street--Romanesque, 1889, 6 units,
3 stories plus attie, hip roof, center entrance, brick with brownstone.

C 165 WILLIAM STREET--Italianate, c. 1875, 2 stories plus attic, flat roof,
side entrance, clapboarded.

C "THE CHARLOTTE" APARTMENTS, 176-8 William Street--Romanesque, 1889, 6
units, 3 stories plus attie, hip roof, center entrance, brick with
projecting wood bays.

C 177 WILLIAM STREET--Italianate, c. 1875, 2 stories plus attic, flat roof,
side entrance, clapboarded.

NC 179 WILLIAM STREET-~-Trucking company depot.

C 186 WILLIAM STREET--Italianate, c. 1860, 2 stories plus attic, front
gable roof, side entrance, wood shingle siding.

C 196-8 WILLIAM STREET--Two family, c. 1915, 2% stories, side gable roof,
side entrance, stucco lst story with aluminum siding above.

C 197 WILLIAM STREET--Italianate, c¢. 1860, 2 stories plus attic over high
basement, front gable roof, side entrance, asphalt siding.

C 211=13 WILLIAM STREET--Italianate, c. 1875, 2 stories plus attic over
high basement, flat roof, center entrance, asbestos siding.

C 216 WILLIAM STREET--Italianate, c¢. 1855, 2 stories, flat roof, side en-
trance, stucco lst story with wood shingle siding above; side addition
constructed 1950s.
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C ARMSTRONG ROW HOUSES, 237-59 William Street--Georgian Revival, 1896,
7 units, 3 stories plus attic, gambrel roof, projecting round bays
with bell roofs, side entrances, brick coigned with granite.

C 240 WILLIAM STREET--Apartment house, c. 1920, 3 stories, flat roof,
center entrance, brick.

C 25260 WILLIAM STREET--Italianate, c. 1860, 2 stories plus attic, side
gable roof, flank entrances, clapboarded.

¢ 2715 WILLIAM STREET--Two family, c. 1925, 2% stories, front gable roof,
side entrance, clapboard & shingle siding.

C FRANK ARMSTRONG HOUSE, 272 William Street--Mansard, 1872, 2 stories
plus attic, mansard roof, center entrance, "Frear's Artificial Stone"
§13 July lé?l?. Built for a mill owner; Abram Skaats, architect
see 275-305 and 337 Knowlton Street, l-13 Armstrong ﬁlace, 237=59
William Street and 273 Harriet Street for related buildings).

C 279-83 WILLIAM STREET--Italianate, c¢. 1875, 2 stories plus attic, front
gable roof, flank entrances, clapboarded.

C 280-2 WILLIAM STREET--Italianate, c. 1880, 2 stories, flat roof, flank
entrance, asphalt siding.

C 292 WILLIAM STREET--Italianate, c¢. 1870, 2 stories plus attic, front
gable roof, side entrance, asbestos siding.

¢ 293«5 WILLIAM STREET--Queen Anne, c. 1890, 2 stories plus attic, side
gable roof, center entrance, clapboarded; elaborate pressed wood
detailing.

C EDWIN L. SIMPSON HOUSE, 315 William Street--Gothic, 18624, 2 stories
plus attic, side gable roof (additional front gable with balcon-
fenetre), center entrance, wood shingle siding. Moved to present
iggg from the NW corner of Barnum Avenue & William Street in the

S.

¢ 327 WILLIAM STREET--~Italianate, c. 1860, 2 stories, flat roof, center
entrance, aluminum siding.

C 333 WILLIAM STREET--Queen Anne, c. 1880, 2 stories plus attic, side
gable roof, center entrance, aluminum siding.
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NC 335-7 WILLIAM STREET--Commercial, c¢. 1940, 1 story, flat roof, brick.

C 338 WILLIAM STREET--Italianate, c. 1865, 2 stories plus attic, double
front gable roof, flank entrance, asphalt siding.

C 343 WILLIAM STREET--Italianate, c. 1860, 2 stories, flat roof, side
entrance, asphalt siding.

C 352-4 WILLIAM STREET~-~Italianate, c. 1860, 2 stories, flat roof, side
entrance, aluminum siding.

C 355 WILLIAM STREET--Queen Anne, c. 1890, 2 stories plus attic, hip roof,
side entrance, clapboarded.

361-5 WILLIAM STREET--Queen Anne, c. 1890, 2 stories plus attic, hip roof,
center entrance, asbestos slding.

- 386-8 WILLIAM STREET--Italianate, c¢. 1875, 2 storlies plus attic, flat
roof, center entrance, asphalt siding.

]

«Q

WASHINGTON PARK BANDSTAND--Gothic, 188L, octagonal cast iron with raised
platform, hip roof. Palliser, Palliser & Co., architects; Yale Mfg.,
Co., fabricators (15 July 1882, 24 July 1882, 3 July 188i, Bridgeport
Municipal Register for 1885, p. L5).

- C WASHINGTON PARK COMFORT STATION--Georgian, 1917, 1 story, flat roof,
agcxatedlsig? fenestration with end porticos, brick (Bridgeport Herald
2 PT e 9 .

Q

Buildings were dated by Bridgeport City Directory readings, selected
title searches, and a complete perusal of local newspapers between 1861
and 1920.




K} SIGNIFICANCE

PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
—PREHISTORIC ~ _ARCHEOLUGY-PREHISTORIC ~ 3¢COMMUNITY PLANNING _ __LANDSCAPE ARCHITECFURE
—1400-1499 __ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATION . _LAW ‘
—_1500-1599 - -__AGRICULTURE ~-_ECONOMICS «_ «—LITERATURE
—1600-1699 XARCHITECTURE __EDUCATION © O _MILTARY
—_1700-1799 __ART __ENGINEERING —MUSIC
X.1800-1899 —_COMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  __PHILOSOPHY.

—.1900- - —COMMUNICATIONS XINDUSTRY —_POLITICS/GOVERNMENT

——INVENTION

—RELIGION.

_-SCIENCE
__SCULPTURE
__SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
__THEATER
—TRANSPORTATION
—_OTHER (SPECIFY]

l £S nppa
SPECIFIC DATES 3 g5y _

_present . BUILDER/ARCHITECT, |

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The East Bridgeport National Register District is Bridgeport's
most intact nineteenth century neighborhood, and here can be seen in a
concentrated area the development of the city as a whole in the Vic-
‘torian period. It was planned from the onset as a totally integrated
community with industries, businesses, and all classes of housing in
close proximity to one another. ' ;

land

years

land

East Bridgeport was laid out in 1851 on what had been vacant farm-
across the river from Bridgeport. Its promoters were P.T. Barnum,
already well established as a showman and a local resident for five
and William H. Noble, a lawyer whose family owned much of the
(he was later to become Civil War occupation governor of Florida).
Many of the streets were named for members of the Barnum and Noble fam-
jlies. In his book Struggles and Triumphs Barnum detailed the plan:

'In 1851 I purchased from Mr. William H. Noble,

of Bridgeport,

the undivided half of his late father's homestead, consisting of
fifty acres, lying on the east side of the river, opposite the City
of Bridgeport. We intended this as the nucleus of a new -eity, which
we concluded could soon be built up, in consequence of the many

natural advantages that it posesses.

Before giving publicity to our plans, however, we purchased
one hundred and seventy-four acres contiguous to that which we al-
ready owned, and laid out the entire property in regular streets,
reserving a beautiful grove of six or eight acres, which we enclosed,
and converted into a public park. We then commenced selling alter-
nate lots, at the same price which the land cost us by the acre.
Our sales were always made on the condition that a sultable dwelling-
house, store, or manufactory should be erected on the land, within
one year of the date of purchase; that every building be placed at
a certain distance from the street, in a style of architecture ap-
proved by us; that the grounds should be enclosed with acceptable
fences, and kept clean and neat, with other conditions which would
render the locality a desirable ome for respectable residents, and
pgerate for the mutual benefit of all persons who should become set-
% ;

ers of the new city.

The entire property consists of a beautiful plateau of ground,
lying within less than half a mile of the center of Bridgeport City.
Considering the superiority of the situation, it is a wonder that
the City of Bridgeport was not originally founded upon that side of

‘the riveri.e.
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We built and leased to a union company of young coach
makers a large and elegant coach manufactory, which was one
of the first buildings erected there, and which went into
operation the first of January, 1852, and was the beginning
of the extensive manufactories which were subsequently built
in Fast Bridgeport.

Besides the inducement which we held out to purchasers
to obtain their lots at a merely nominal price, we advanced
one-half, two~thirds, and frequently all the funds necessary
to erect their buildings, permitting them to repay us in sums
as small as five dollars, at their own convenience., This arrange-
ment enabled many persons to secure and ultimately pay for homes
which they could not otherwise have obtained. We looked for:
our profits solely to the rise in value of the reserved lots,
which we were confident must ensue. Of course, these extra-
ordinary inducements led many persons to build in the new city,
and it began to develop and increase withla rapidity rarely
witnessed in this section of the country.

Another mortgage policy instituted byzBarnum in 1864, which has
been called the "forerunner of the F.H.A."“, required a twenty per
cent down payment which could be paid in labor or material as well as
cash. It was avgilable to any "industrious, temperate, and respect-
able individual®™’. By purchasing building materials in large quan-
tities for cash the price of "nice dwellings, painted and furnished
with green’blinés" was kept to $1500.00 to $i800.00, including house,
lot, and fences'. An advertisement headed "The New City" in the
Briégeport Republican Farmer of November 21 1854 boasted "There are
no mud holes, or grog shops, or other nuisances; a new Church is now
in course of erection, and one of the largest and best School-Houses
in the State is to be built forthwith. Gas and water are soon to be
introduced through the New City, and no inducements are lacking for
respectable families to secure lots thereon”.

The East Bridgeport carriage company already alluded to was fol-
lowed by the removal of the Wheeler & Wilson Sewing Machine Company

o g o G o W S o D S U s N TS G WS W AN A WY G G PN e G MU SN AL RS S SRS SN U SIS G P SO D Ser e S T S SN S D W e e W SO s R W W W B -

Lstruggles and Triumphs, pp. 275-6

“New Haven Register "Sunday Pictorial", 4 Oct. 1970
30p. Cit. p. 399
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from Watertown in 1857. The factory was located across East Main
Street from the district between Barnum Avenue and the railroad
tracks; the last of its buildings was demolished in the early 1970s
for a Housatonic Community College parking lot. Company employees
(around 1000) swelled the population, and approximately one third

of the large houses surrounding Washington Park were built by Wheeler
& Wilson Company executives.

In 1862 Elias Howe moved his sewing machine company to East
Bridgeport, erecting a plant on the Pequonnock River south of the
railread tracks (buildings demolished in the early 1970s for the
Bridgeport Jai Alai fronton). He also employed around 1000 hands,
and helped make East Bridgeport the acknowleged sewing machine capie
tol of the world in the last century. Other important industries
located around the periphery of the residential district included the
Winchester Arms Company, the Bridgeport Brass Company, and the Union
Metallic Cartridge Company. By 1869 it was estimated that East Bridge-
port contained one-fourth of the populat%on and three-fourths of the
manufacturing capital of the entire city”.

The integration of different classes of housing within the district
did not last long into the twentieth century. East Bridgeport, with
its extensive munition works, became known as the "Essen of America"
during World War I, and the city's population jumped from 115,000 to
175,000 between 19ih and 1916. Wealthy people fled the aging Victorian
houses on the fringes of an industrial zone, and most were divided into
rooming houses and apartments for Italian and East European immigrant
workers. A contemporary newspaper account noted:

"Undoubtedly Washington Fark has already more than paid for
itself but it is no longer an asset to the property owners. This
is due to the wrong locating of the park. While it brought good
dwellings to its neighborhood in the first place these dwellings
are running down because of the park's adjacency to the foreign
section. The women and children from the tenement section on

Ibid, p. 403
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the other side of the railroad overflow into the park og a hot
day and ruin the neighborhood as a residential section"®.

Today the Victorian enclosure of Washington Park remains basically
intact, although the removal of towers, monitors, decorative wood trim
and landscaping have compromised its integrity somewhat. Low maintain-
ence siding covers at least half the buildings. The side streets that
relate to the park have kept their original ambiance in varying degrees,
but all retain a strong nineteenth century flavor.

More than any other Victorian neighborhood in Bridgeport, East
Bridgeport bears the marks of being a planned community. Located away
from the mainstream of business expansion, its original design has never
suffered major changes, and private restoration activity which is al-
ready underway promises to make the area again a model of nineteenth
century urban design.
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The East Bridgeport National Register District includes the
area in the City of Bridgeport bounded as follows:

Starting at a point of intersection with the east U,5., Harbor
Line in the Pequonnock River and the north street line of Arctic
Street;

Thence easterly for a distance of 835,87 feet, more or less,
to a point of intersection with the east street line of William
Street;

Thence northerly for a distance of 55.66 feet, more or less,
to a point of intersection with the north property line of land now
or formerly of Henry L. Stern;

Thence easterly for a distance of 211,07 feet, more or less,
to a point of intersection with the west property line of land now
or formerly of Jose & Blanca Guzman;

Thence northerly for a distance of 81.50 feet, more or less, to
a point of intersection with the north property line of land now or
formerly of Jose & Blanca Guzman;

Thence easterly for a distance of 43 feet, more or less, to
a point of intersection with the west property line of land now
or formerly of Jose Robbles;

Thence northerly for a distance of 47 feet, more or less, to a
point of intersection with the north property line of land now or
formerly of Jose Robbles;

Thence easterly for a distance of 59,94 feet, more or less,
to a point of intersection with the west property line of land now
or formerly of Peter & Irma Filippone;

Thence southerly for a distance of 133,87 feet, more or less,
to a point of intersection with the south property line of land now
or formerly of Clarence & Mary Lucas;
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Thence easterly for a distance of 170,03 feet, more or less,
to a point of intersection with the east street line of Noble
Avenue;

Thence northerly for a distance of 6,01 feet, more or less, to
a point of intersection with the south property line of land now
or formerly of Russell Palaia Jr,;

Thence easterly for a distance of 337,19 feet, more or less,
to a point of intersection with the west property line of land
now or formerly of Dimitri & Elsa Bagdanow;

Thence northerly for a distance of 33,63 feet, more or less, to
a point of intersection with the south property line of land now
or formerly of Inez Cesero;

Thence easterly for a distance of 174,17 feet, more or less, to
a point of intersection with the east street line of Kossuth Street;

Thence northerly for a distance of 19,62 feet, more or less,
to a point of intersection with the north property line of land now
or formerly of Francisco & Rose Lepore;

Thence easterly for a distance of 102,41 feet, more or less, to
a point of intersection with the west property line of land now or
formerly of Francesca Pagliaro;

Thence northerly for a distance of 9,26 feet, more or less, to
a point of intersection with the north property line of land now
or formerly of Francesca Pagliaro;

Thence easterly for a distance of 50,10 feet, more or less, to
a point of intersection with the west property line of land now or
formerly of M.A. Alfano;

Thence southerly for a distance of 60,44 feet, more or less,
to a point of intersection with the north property line of land now
or formerly of Stephen & Anna Kasper;

Thence easterly for a distance of 50,71 feet, more or less, to
a point of intersection with the west street line of Beach Street;



Form No. 10-300a
(Rev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

CONTINUATION SHEET ITEM NUMBER 1.0 PAGE 4

Thence southerly for a distance of 96,23 feet, more or less,
to a point of intersection with the south street line of Arctic
Street;

Thence easterly for a distance of 152,09 feet, more or less,
to a point of intersection with the west property line of land now
or formerly of Frank & Emma Pulito;

Thence southerly for a distance of 80,5 feet, more or less, to
a point of intersection with the south property line of land now or
formerly of Frank & Emma Pulito;

Thence westerly for a distance of 42,36 feet, more or less,
to a point of intersection with the east property line of land now
or formerly of John Apelgard;

Thence southerly for a distance of 21,07 feet, more or less,
to a point of intersection with the north property line of land now
or formerly of F, Castorinaj;

Thence easterly for a distance of 2,96 feet, more or less, to
a point of intersection with the east property line of land now or
formerly of F, Castorinaj;

Thence southerly for a distance of 252,78 feet, more or less,
to a point of intersection with the south street line of Maple
Street;

Thence easterly for a distance of 26,91 feet, more or less, to
a point of intersection with the east property line of land now
or formerly of the Connecticut National Bank;

Thence southerly for a distance of 267,48 feet, more or less,
to a point of intersection with the north property line of land now
or formerly of Anthony & John Riccio;

Thence westerly for a distance of 30 feet, more or less, to a
point of intersection with the east property line of land now or
formerly of Anthony, John, & Frank Riccio;

Thence southerly for a distance of 249,2 feet, more or less, to
a point of intersection with the north property line of land now or
formerly of Frank & Alice Petak;
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Thence easterly for a distance of 28,7 feet, more or less, to
a point of intersection with the east property line of land now or
formerly of Frank & Alice Petak;

Thence southerly for a distance of 239.47 feet, more or less,
to a point of intersection with the north property line of land now
or formerly of the White Eagle Society of Brotherly Help Inc.;

Thence westerly for a distance of 73,43 feet, more or less, to
a point of intersection with the east property line of land now or
formerly of Costo & Bridget Buonnano;

Thence southerly for a distance of 142,6 feet, more or less,
to a point of intersection with the north track line of the Penn
Central Railroad;

Thence southwesterly along the north track line of the Penn Central
Railroad to a point of intersection with the north street line of
Crescent Avenue;

Thence southwesterly along the north street line of Crescent
Avenue to a point of intersection with the north street line of Con-
gress Street;

Thence southwesterly along the north street line of Congress
Street to a point of intersection with the east U.S. Harbor Line in
the Pequonnock River;

Thence northerly along the east U,S. Harbor Line in the Pequon-
nock River to a point of intersection with the north street line of
Arctic Street.



~ N 2 > ,
EAST BRIDGEPORT NATIONAL
REGISTER DISTRICT &+ -

E

NOBL}

25,

._M . Stillman |
LR i P
%, Drive-i / ond,

,_, \
} ' i : takeviewf,
b Th X Y &
/ Theaters jd m.@.ﬁu ! ‘. ,

\ &
4

/£ M ,

ﬁ.\;\ ,,\ . ;\H.W,,,ff\ v

A @O
tersville '

151:3:'“‘ g o

“IVELNTY (gme )

U
)

otk
e

s
T (|3 0
,,mﬁramn i L,.._




N |

L
<P
193
S
.

M

L]
’\,.
S
4 ol e

i ey & N o
DT e Bwacye M ko sies \s\ T :
G " \Q um m.dwl%h.:.ﬂwcr £ 0 Suksy 8 #8orfen D
74 . LR B L vt s
1
‘ all7olor T
s N - 3
. : o) 1005 M ..
o R BN
. e B ,
e o5 w?‘.\l. & 0 -
h?\«\ v &bl h\«h&.- ra -
say2 N ¥V -
. . Ty - Caleder va 8,7 Conrmncy, o1rmtin 3
kY ;Ct Mepolevm Fac.t i, Snc. <-2F 6
. . " 4
. s 8 B
raf 2er
- e (TR RS L - ’

S
s9r-57 ]
ced

aiun.ﬂ‘ p
tS;!M My §°

sy | 2,
AP erias

N 5 %, z
ol © v ”N«N ‘Mﬂﬂﬂxuﬂ\!ﬁs.
i " 7
YN 7$ ..06. (4 0w.un asachy 93
e P 4 rr.
.“x_;i.-\.«..\\l ‘\xa\”..\qa\ "m“ O
N R 3 20T
B 0/ 23 | Jecond Buet ik Hurck
S2IRT IT R TIIE
: of ?
=pr Al
i e CEE: 232
' v i
| A
— 0}
1 h
IR
A8
[N hd
IS
e
..._N-. ' ¢\
3
SRS
< <

* by L -
<tol7resr e

Vider? Jforce K inf-3ar ¢

\\ »Al«?lq
k N \?..«.?._w . .
; wAth.c). 2 [3 - 27 e et 2 T
. kY
7 g7e -

[ 2
o — <7 45 - ’

Rt o~ - D\S
w77 868 .~:))o\ g .

Yary Sertrun

W. by D5 Bi st . z
o W 26F L 0 rg el .m.
ol

0
. 1
N
Y
W
A
f---r;|
Jfl

ot

- A,L m%.\ giﬂ»w«f&. _ V O .
SR ARG [_cerer .
z - f N b olis Bectine Araycr ke I
tf - ’/.— . _ul N tgoe A 2 A bl “5p.r

- \ ¢ ™
2 R W Na ¥

mﬁa O.H

)l.t\\ 2. 1.\3.)\&@ ﬁ‘ - -
/”HiZ ¢

L, e—

A D Aizrure, x..u!\ 1.. 5

.
ofh
»

.38 -

-M\h )




O s06.08

A eaped

$5.97

ey A L

X Ll
avng

O ST s et D
D

i a«w-":;] :
My [T e R yreny srety

Lewit
P

T IJ I [2¥6.

22 o5

i

S

FiT0rT
A
Gt S DY

meT e N
RIS

i

2

FET

*qa
SR P
i e FEAT A )L
R=—=P o]
LRATRY "‘/'r."v,i{,‘ e
[N -
- NI
ot 0y g e

P o
s ey

T A -

-

144 9 Yorvay mirod
g
Nk e Lyrae v

aad

.

Ly 2 |

270

—_
~

=
o -
.

S
e

I/
o

N

N

bl | @l T
o I .
* N

' Vo . 1;4'11.{0!';“ n -n‘.-‘-..";,j‘-T‘-
A 3 h L i \ L
v\ AN v * ¥ " . Y v P ]
! Los T ’ — 57 72 R V71 e 2 AR
v .”'{ ‘4‘..15% . ? Alos o gglo L
590" 3 . 0 - - N
Y ] .
Sf 7 R sy cngpiernst] Bem 195 - ‘g\\d
N R R peta st 5 2 S
e “i"' o 960 ""‘7‘-'1“‘/" L 12U 2, "
afp 09/ N0 - o6«
IR Tavn Roore |
. ~ n .
N o R - -
bX \ 2 N R ;‘ .,"5?"";".1? sy r
M " [IEAS Pt n P
/ i

f

o
el
‘. 5 R
"’ $ R s < ‘

W % T

= A7

B E a’!l

Tt
=32

T

>0
A -
Tos . eroe -
9-¥/-®/, WL Piajo O
’ Ravpy s Kwrayy »du "7 e - J
e .
] Iatd

NATIONAL REGIST%

3
DISTRICT 3
o

[N
N\

AN

EAST BRIDGEPORT

X B,
N N
e~ 2ela |3 My
- i 3
N
BN
sra - i
g - :
- a2ls l
L% §3¢27 ¢

R OO S
A

T e

4TT A

33776

|

14
25
)
QZ4”ON @ :
%‘zggk



